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The Ellas - McKay House is an architecturally significant and charming Queen

Anne Cottage with Eastlake detailing. The house is a yellow two-story, hipped-roofed,
irregularly massed, clapboard-frame building set on a 36" brick foundation with

its entry facing west. The house is also located on a corner lot, among homes

which vary in origin from the 1890's to the 1960's and are in both good and

bad condition. The exterior of the house retains its original character and is

in good-to-excellent condition.

The front of the house is basically composed of two bays. The left bay (when
facing the building) is defined at the roof level by a clipped-gabled roof

complete with .barge board decoration, on the second floor Tevel, by paired
double-hung windows, and on. the Tower level by a beveled bay window with three
single double-hung windows complemented by a corner scroll bracket with ornamental
pendent. The top of the right bay is a small gabled porch complete with a barge
board, turned wooden columns, and spindled balusters and cornice. inis porch

is easily accessible through a paneled door w/ glass, at the top of the second
floor stairlanding inside. Below the gabled porch is an impressive semi-circular
entrance verandah. This verandah,which helps define the houses's scale and
entry, is complete with a porch swing. The verandah's eave overlaps the right
beveled window of the left bay and continues in a parallel manner along the

front of the house to finally project in a semicircular torm at the corner of

the house. The verandah is complete with a turned spindled cornice which rests

on turned wooden columns via fanned shaped brackets. The balustrade is constructed
with turned wooden spindles, complete with turned wooden newels to help define

the verandah entry. The verandah is in good condition but needs some work (decking).

The front door is basically divided into two parts. The upper half contains

a piece of beveled oval glass. The glass is symbolically supported by a cornice
complete with dentils. Below the dentils, the door has four panels in two
vertical tiers.

The basic components of the south elevation are divided into three parts. On the
left side, is the projecting end of the entry verandah. In the central area is

a projecting gabled bay (one of Three) and to the right on the Tower level is

a porch with a Tatticework screen. The lattice is constructed with 1/2" x 1"
members laid 90 degrees to one another. The lattice and porch wrap from the south-
east third of the house to completely cover the rear the house. The lattice

porch still has two original pie tablés which are built into and supported by the
latticework and the floor. The view from inside the house through the lattice-
porch occurs from within the kithen and dining areas (see floor plans). .
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The northern elevation consists of three components. Towards the back ('eft) of

the house, a bathroom (added around 1913) complete with a curved root olends

in well and complements the scale of the house. The central element in the elevation
is a projecting gabled bay which is different on the lower level because it does not
become a beveled bay. Also it is different in that the corner trim rises to suggest
a pilaster.

The house also has a garden which is located on the southeastern part of the
property. The garden is defined by a fence constructed with 3" x 3' boards
pointed at the top complete with arbors at the entrys. The garden and fence are
an original part of the house. The house also has azaleas planted along its front
(West), south, and north sides. A large (150 years old) oak tree resides in the
front yard. An old but not original storage shed is placed at the back extremity
of the property.

The interior of the house is in good condition. The floor is still the original
hardwood. The walls have been repainted or repapered. The original trim around
doors, windows, and ceilings is in excellent condition. The baseboard trim is
accented throughout the house with corner pendents. The decorative hardware and
light fixtures are original. The house retains it s essential character even
though alterations have been made. The original velvet curtains have been removed.
The original 11'-12' ceilings have been Towered (1957) to accomodate HVAC ductwork.
When the ceiling was lowered a Eastlake screen (latticework) was removed from the
doorway between the entry parlor and the central living area (see floor plan).

This screen is in storage and is in excellent conditioon. Ubstairs there has

been a small alteration. A small bathroom was added (1913). This addition is

small and unnoticeable because of the irregular massing of the house.
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The house is entered through ‘the verandah to'the ‘foyer. iThe foyer contdins two
doors, one straightahead and one to the left. To the right,atter entering, the
foyer is an open-string, open-well, three-flight stairway with a winder. The
stairway is a major feature of the interior. rihe stair's balusters are constructed
with turned wooden spindles. The stairway is also decoratively paneled underneath.
The meeting of the stairway and the upper floor is accented by a projecting
corner newel. The room to the left of the foyer is the entry parlor. This room
has a beveled bay with three single double-hung windows. This room still retains
its original Tight fixture. Entering straight through the foyer instead of turning
to the left, one enters another room with a projected bay, also with its original
light fixture. Both rooms just described open via original sliding doors to a .
centralized 1iving area (see fLoor plan). This room was heated by a coal fire
and above the stove was an opening in the upper floor to allow heat to circulate
upstairs. Also opening into this centralized 1iving area on its third side (east)
through sliding paneled doors is the large dining room. The latticework-
porch runs along the south wall of the dining room. From the dining room one can
either go onto the porch or enter the kitchen via a hall which also connects to ‘the
bathroom addition mentioned earlier (see floor plan).

The kitchen contains three tall double-hung windows and an exit onto the back porch.
The kitchen once had a dumbwaiter. The fixtures are not original but are
inadequate and old. {

Upstairs the stairway intersects a hallway which runs east-west. Three bedrooms
and one bath (addition) is served by the hallway. The rooms are basically alike.
A11 but one of the bedrooms enjoy paired double-hung windows with the sash about
1' above the floor. The ceiling is clipped at different walls in each room where
the hipped-roof adds character to the bedroom spaces. The combination of 9'
ceiling heights (clipped), and large paired windows provide a pleasant sense of
proportion which reinforces the scale and imagery of the house as a whole.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

1 The Ellas - McKay House is an architecturally unique Queen Anne Cottage with
Eastlake detailing® The combination of the house's humane massing and it's
thorough execution of detail(from the use-of barge boards, balistrades, corner
brackets, latticework, down to the corner pendents in the base trim)make this
house truly unique in this state-region. 2 The house is also one of two
substantial high-Victorian structures remaining in Clarendon, a small, architecturally
significant rivertown which played an important role in the development of this
state. This house has the potential to be completely renovated and provide the
public with a truly unique and complete expression of Victorian life and imagery.

3 The house is also significant because of the prominent Clarendon family who
consider this house their family home and are associated with this structure.

A
The land was originally owned by Simon P. Hughes, a former governor of Arkansas.
J. S. 4alls owned the land when it was purchased by T. S. Ellas on June 30.2
1908. T.S. Ellas was a carpenter and sawmiller. He built this house in 1908
for his family. He was a competent carpenter who constructed other structures
in Clarendon. One such structure was a grandstand at the athletic field.
This grandstand is said to have been built with large, heavy timbers and was
very large in scale.

On March 5, 1942, R.J. and Josie McKay purchased_.the property from Bernice Wheelis,
who was a daughter or step-daughter of T.S. Ellast R. J. McKay, .born 1882 in Keevil,
Ark., served as county treasurer for 18 years and also as deputy sheriff. R.J.

and Josie had 11 children. The majority of whor4 have made their home in Clarendon.
R. J.'s sons have become established business and civic leaders in the community.
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Robert McKay, a son of R.J., and his family renovated the house in 1974, after
the house was used as a rent house for years. /he renovation project included:
painting the house a nice yellow, replacing missing decorative pieces, etc.

The house is now used as a private residence by the Robert McKay family.
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I kansas HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROGRAN
Suite 500, CormnenTol Building - Markham and Main - Little Rock, Arkansas 722

August 10, 1978

e: (601) 371-2763

R. J. McKay Estate
404 North Walls
Clarendon, AR 72029

Re: Ellas-McKay House, Clarendon

Dear Sir: Monroe County

The staff of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program is preparing a
National Register nomination for the above-captioned property which will
be presented to the Arkansas State Review Committee at their September 12
meeting. If approved, the nomination will be submitted to the National
Register office in Washington for final consideration.

The National Register of Historic Places is a listing of historic sites,
buildings, objects and districts from all across the country that are
worthy of preservation. Entry in the National Register is an honor

which places no obligation on a private owner. It does, however, provide
protection through comment by the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation
from federally financed, assisted or licensed projects that might affect

a National Register property.

On October 4, 1976, the President signed a Tax Reform Act of which
Section 2124 refers to tax incentives for historic properties. Enclosed
you will find an information sheet on that tax act.

If you have any questions concerning the program or this property's
nomination, please contact Mike Shinn of our staff.

Enclosed are two copies of this letter. Please complete the form below,
sign and return the original to our office. The copy is for your files.
We would appreciate .receiving any comments you might have concerning the
nomination of this property. If we do not hear from you within 30 days
your approval will be assumed.

Sincerely,

E;CLJ,LQAhA4L_ y

Barbara Woodard, Deputy Director
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

I approve of the nomination of the above property to the National Register
of Historic Places 5 Yes No

Comments:

f//f/ Vi g

Date

ADivision of the Department of Arkansas Natural Cultural Heritoge
An Equal Opportunity Empolyer.
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Honorable Dale Bumpers

Houorable Kaneaster Hodges, Jr. State Historilc Preservation Cfficer
Honorable Bill Alexander, Jr. Ms. Anne Bartley
Honorable John P, Haumerschmidt Acting Director

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
Suite 500, Continental Building
Markham and Main Streets

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
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